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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

PLED NTHE
ij.. DSThICT cOURT
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JAMES B. LARSEN, CLERK

DEPUTY

$-95-O382’VVS.
a smgle om

and _, No
husbandand wife and parentsof

vs.

Plaintiffs,

DAVENPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NO. 207, a political subdivision;and
HAROLD PATTERSON, individually and
in his capacityasPrincipal of Davenport
High School,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
AND DEMAND FOR

JURY TRIAL

COME NOW theplaintiffs, and eachof them, by and throughtheir undersignedattorney,

Richard C. Eymann,and for their causeof actionagainstthe defendantsallege as follows:

I

JURISDICTION

This Court hasjurisdiction over the subject matter of this suit pursuantto 28 U. S.C.

§13432,3 and 4, and 20 U.S.C. §1681, et

statelaw claims.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND DEMAND FOR JURY
TRIAL-i
PLDGGILESDISTRICT.CMP

This Court haspendentjurisdiction over the
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1 II.

2 . . PARTIES

3 1. Plaintiff 1 was a studentand athleteof DavenportHigh School during

4 the school years 1 990.T1993. At all relevanttimes hereto,-plaintiff was a resident

5 of Lincoln County,Washington,which is within the venueof the EasternDistrict of Washington.

6 2. Plaintiffs - are the naturalparentsof At all

7 relevanttimes hereto,plaintiffs were residentsof Lincoln County, which is

8 within the venueof the EasternDistrict of Washington.

9 3. DefendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207 is a public school district political

10 subdivisionorganizedand existing within the stateof Washingtonand subjectto the provisions

11 of Title 28A of theRevisedCodeof Washington. At all times materialshereto,DavenportHigh

12 School is and was a public high school operatedby the defendantDavenportSchool District

13 No. 207. As such,defendantDavenportSchool District No. 207, as a principal, is responsible

14 for all wrongful conduct, acts, errors, and omissions of its board members, superintendents,

15 administrators,principals, coaches,teachers,studentcounselorsand other agents,complainedof

16 herein,with respectto or as a result of the enrollmentand attendanceof plaintiff HeatherGiles

17 at DavenportHigh School.

18 4. DefendantHaroldPatterson,atall materialtimes hereto,wasprincipalof Davenport

19 High School, an employeeadministratorof defendantDavenportSchool District No. 207 acting

20 in his official and individual capacities,and was a residentof the stateof Washington.

21 III.

22 VENUE AND ADMINISTRATIVE PREFILING CONDITIONS

23 5. Venue is properly in this Court pursuantto 28 U.S.C. §1391b.

24

25
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U-. -
1 6. Administrativeconditions precedentto filing this suit havebeenmet. Thetortious

2 and other claims set forth hereinwere presentedto defendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207

3 as requiredby RCW 4.96, . No acceptablerelief hasbeenoffered.

4 . IV. . -..

5 OPERATIVE FACTS

6 7. DefendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207 at all materialtimes hereto,received

7 federal assistanceand statefunding. Its acts, as herein alleged, were under color of statute,

8 regulation,custom,or usageof state.

9 8. Beginning in the springof 1992, and while plaintiff was a 15 year old

10 minor and in her sophomoreyear as a student at DavenportHigh School, CharlesJungblom,

11 havingbeena ‘supervisor" sinceoriginal employmentwith defendantDavenportSchoolDistrict

12 No. 207 andhavingachievedthestatusof an official or quasi-official administrator,and acting as

13 well in thecapacityof teacher,coachand counselor,committedactsagainst - - andher

14 parentswhich were willful and intentional in nature. This conductwas precededby years of

15 suggestiveand inappropriatebehaviorand/oi’ illegal conduct with female studentsof defendant

16 DavenportSchool District No. 207 which said defendantrespondedwith deliberateindifference

17 or tacit authorization. - - was one such studentin a series of studentvictims. In

18 addition,asit specificallyrelatesto plaintift , CharlesJungblom,while having direct

19 authority and/orsipervision over her in two or more capacities,encouragedand extortedvideos,

20 one or more of which were the exploitation of - in child pornography,and all the

21 while engagedin the destructionof plaintiff - familial relationship. Theseactswere

22 accomplishedthrough various mental and physical influences, including grooming, coercion,

23 extortion, threats, persuasion, deception, bribery, misrepresentation,domination, power,

24 intimidation, authority and control.

25
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1 9. CharlesJungblomhas sincebeenconvictedand sentencedto prison for crimes in

2 which was one of his victims. CharlesJungblom is no longer an employeeof

3 defendantDavenportSchool District No. 207 but on information and belief, continuesto be

4

eligible to receivea pensionfrom said deferdant. .- -.

5 10. Theaforementionedactsandconductof CharlesJungblomconstitutedquidpro quo

6 sexualharassmentin that they were tied to 1 the threat of imposedloss of economicand future

7 job benefits,2 direct threatto preventhergraduationfrom high school, and3 other threatened

8 punishmentfor failure to comply with his demandsand to protect the,secrecyof his harassment.

9 11. The aforesaidactscommencedat a time whenplaintiff - as a young

10 female student,was vulnerableto mucholder male authority figures suchas CharlesJungblom.

11 These predatory acts continued repeatedly and/or constantly until plaintiff -

12 graduationfrom DavenportHigh Schoolon June13, 1993.

13 12. The aforesaid intentional acts by Charles Jungblom involving

14 commencedwhenhe was her assistantgirls’ cross-countrycoach. was a cross-country

15 team member her sophomoreyear. The4ntentional acts increased when CharlesJungblom

16 encouraged to becomePresidentof High-5 a school pep club in the Fall of her

17 junior yearof high school. In addition, CharlesJungblomwasherbasketballcoachon the junior

18 varsity team and assistantcoach when she played varsity. All of these regular school and

19 extracurricularactivitiesfall within the scopeof RCW 28A.58.125 andRCW 28A.600.200,which

20 requiredefendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207, throughits officials and administrators,to

21 ". . . exercisetheauthority to control, supervise,andregulatetheconductof inter-schoolathletic

22 activities and other inter-school extracurricularactivities of an athletic, cultural, social, or

23 recreationalnaturefor studentsof the district." Further,CharlesJungblomhad designatedhimself

24 as personal"counselor"whenshewasa sophomore. Plaintiffs allegethat defendant

25 Davenport School District No. 207 and defendant Patterson failed to comply with

26 FELTMAN, GEBF1ARDT, EYMANN & JONES, P.S.
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1 RCW 28A.58.125, RCW 28A.600.200and otherstatutory requirementsas hereinafteralleged,

2 failedto protectplaintifi from an employeewhom theyalreadyknew, or shouldhave

3 known by prior conduct,to be likely to commit the acts, or similar acts, that he-committedupon

4 plaintiff - CharlesJungblom’s illicit actionswere increasedand/ormadepossible

5 by his assignmentto thepositionof "schoolcounselor"andwere knownto several,possiblymany,

6 of the students, staff and administratorsof the school district. SuperintendentDave Iverson,

7 Principal Harold Patterson, and certain board members are accountable pursuant to

8 RCW 28.150.230formerly 28A.58.758 and had receivednotice of a patternof questionable

9 conductand unconstitutionalacts committed by CharlesJungblomand thereafterdemonstrated

10 deliberateindifferenceor tacit authorizationof his offensive and illegal acts. As a result, at all

11 timesmaterial hereto,SuperintendentIverson,Principal Patterson,CharlesJungblomand school

12 board membershad personal involvement and/or committed affirmative acts of gender-based

13 discrimination and were acting in their respectivecapacities as agents and/or employeesof

14 defendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207.

15 13. After CharlesJungblomfirst coercedand enticedplaintiff to make

16 a non-sexual"modeling" video, he set out on a courseof conductthat intimidated and coerced

17 into filming herself in a sexually explicit video. DefendantDavenportSchool

18 District No. 207 and its agents, school board members, and administrators, Superintendent

19 Dave Iversonand defendantPatterson,failed to properly investigateor takecorrectivemeasures

20 with regard to Charles Jungblom’s contact with plaintiff despite a streamof

21 indicators, including, but not limited to, earliersameor similar contactswith other femalestudents

22 that included modeling. After CharlesJungblomhad successfullycoercedthe first video with

23 sexualconnotationsfrom , he rapedher during a meetinghe arrangedregardingher

24 DavenportHigh School extracurricularactivity "High-5" of which he was the faculty advisorand

25 . Thereafter,for a periodof approximatelyone year, - was
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1 rapedby CharlesJungblomat least oncea week. The sex on demandby CharlesJungblomwas

2 never consensual,rather, was always occasionedby threats or acts of quid pro quo sexual

3 harassment. Contemporaneouslyand subsequently,he repeatedlykept her quiet concerningthe

4 ... initial rape and his subsequent- non-consensualsex on demand by-.teateningthe anonymous

5 releaseof the sexualvideoto her parentsandmale schoolmates. Herentirehigh school life was

6 subjectedby CharlesJungblomanddefendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207 to illegal hostile

7 environmentdiscrimination.

8 14. At all times material hereto, Charles Jungblom was a duly certified teacher

9 employedby defendant Davenport School District No. 207 as a quasi-official administrator/

10 teacher/counselor/coachand was acting within the scopeandcourseof his employmentwith said

11 school district. Such conduct, errors and omissions on the part of Charles Jungblom, as are

12 complainedof herein,arethe actsof defendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207 undergenerally

13 recognizedprincipalsof agencylaw and pursuantto the provisionsof RCW 4.24.470.

14 15. At all times material hereto, there existed a "special relationship" between

15 defendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207 and plaintiff wherebysaiddefendant

16 DavenportSchool District No. 207, its administratorsand officials owed affirmative duties,

17 including the taking of sufficient remedialaction to protectplaintiff from harm and

18 to takereasonablesteps to provideher a safeeducationalsetting.

19 16. Theconductof defendantDavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207, whoseadministrators,

20 officials, and specifically defendantPattersonas well as schoolboardmembersand teachers,with

21 actualknowledgeknew, or should have known, of the overt, obvious and/or highly suspicious

22 natureof the conductbeing committedby CharlesJungblom, were proximate causesof serious

23 injuries to plaintiffs and specifically plaintiff * including, without limitation, her

24

25 1As that term is defined in Estelle v.Gamble,429 U.S. 97 1976.
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1 self-esteem,her educationalopportunities,hermentalstability and the destructionof her familial

2 relationship. As a furtherproximateresultthereof,plaintiff - duffered,andcontinues

3 to suffer, major clinical depression,post-traumaticstress disorder, mental anguish, anxiety,

4 humiliation, embarrassment,andphysicaland mentajLscarring. She was subjectedby defendants

5 and their agentCharlesJungblomto unwelcomesexualmisconductso severeand pervasivethat

6 it alteredand continuesto alter her educationaland social enviromnent. Plaintiff

7 hasbeenand continuesto be theobject of ridicule and humiliation by otherpersons. She andher

8 parentshave, due to the actsof agentsof defendantschooldistrict, beenostracizedandperceived

9 in a bad light by many citizens of the Davenportcommunity, DavenportSchoolBoard, City of

10 Davenportand Lincoln County government. On informationandbelief, it is allegedthat plaintiff

11 will continue to suffer substantialphysical and psychologicalproblems for an

12 indeterminateperiod of time.

13 V.

14 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION:
DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX

15 IN VIOLATION OF 20 U.S.C. §1681 TITLE IX

16 17. Plaintiffs reallegeeachand every allegationset forth in paragraphs1 through 16.

17 18. Defendantsare directly andstrictly2 liable to plaintiff pursuantto 20

18 U.S.C. §1681, et q. Title IX, by subjecting * to gender-baseddiscrimination

19 includingquidpro quo sexualharassmentandhostile environmentsexualharassment.Defendants

20 are likewise directly and strictly liable for the intentional acts of CharlesJungblom and the

21 malfeasance,misfeasanceand nonfeasance,and failure to act of any principal, superintendent,

22 administratorand/orschoolboardmemberthat contributedto suchdiscrimination. Defendantsare

23 also liable under alternativeagencyprincipals for the failure to act of any employeewho had

24
2’Strictly" refers to strict liability asthat term is usedand/or defmedby Benson v.Dundee,682 F.2d 897 11th Cir.

25 1982 and its progeny Lipsett v. Univ.of PuertoRico, 864 F.2d 881 1st Cir. 1988.
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1 knowledgeand did not report it to administratorsand/orboardmembers. The actsor failure to

2 act of defendantswas accomplishedwith recklessindifferenceor tacit authorization.

3 VI.

4 - SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION:
DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY INTEREST

5 TO BE FREE FROM SEXUAL MOLESTATION

6 19. Plaintiffs reallegeeachand every allegationset forth in paragraphs1 through 18.

7 20. A "specialrelationship"existedbetweendefendantsandplaintiff -. thus

8 creatinganexceptionto the DeShaneyrule.3 Defendantsarethus liableto plaintiff W

9 pursuantto 42 U.S.C. § 1983, ., for deprivationof civil and constitutional

10 rights and interestsin being protectedfrom the intentionalsexualmolestationand exploitationby

11 CharlesJungblomwhile under the mandatoryprotectivecustody of defendantDavenportSchool

12 District No. 207. Likewise, defendantsare liable to the plaintiff parentsfor deprivationof their

13 constitutionallyprotectedrights.

14 VII.

15 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION:
NEGLIGENT POLICY ADMINISTRATION, INVESTIGATION,

16 SUPERVISION/RETENTIONOF EMPLOYEEAND
OTHER PENDANT STATUTORY AND COMMON LAW CLAIMS

17
21. Plaintiffs reallegeeachand every allegationset forth in paragraphs1 through20.

18
22. At the time of thecommencementof the aforesaidacts by CharlesJungblom, and

19
on numerousoccasionsthereafter,plaintiff was requiredby law to "submit to the

20
authority" of CharlesJungblompursuantto RCW 28A.58.200and RCW 28A.600.040and was

21
therebyin the mandatoryprotectivecustody of DavenportHigh School. As a result, defendant

22
DavenportSchoolDistrict No. 207 and its supervisors,administrators,and specifically defendant

23

24 3DeShaney v. Winneba.p Count’,’ Department of SocialServices,489 U.S. 189 1989, which held that the Due
ProcessClauseconfers "no affirmativeright to governmentalaid, even wheresuchaid may he necessaryto securelife, liberty,

25 or property interests.’
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1 Patterson,in additionto teachers,and employees,as qualifiedcertified educators4,and its general

2 public school system administration5 had an affirmative duty to make appropriate policies,

3 disseminatethem, createa procedurefor reportingviolations thereof,to anticipatedangerswhich

4 may rasonablybe anticipated, and to then take precautionsto protect its studentsincluding-.

5 plaintiff - from suchdangers. Its failure in this regard is negligence.

6 23. Likewise, defendants,and specifically defendantPatterson,are subject to liability

7 to the plaintiffs for negligencein the investigationof complaintsand failure to take prompt and

8 correctiveaction, negligencein supervisionandretentionof CharlesJungblom,who, but for such

9 multiple acts of negligence,would have previouslybeenproperly investigated,suspendedand/or

10 disciplinedfor conductwith other femalestudents,preventinghim from beginninghis involvement

11 with The claim of theplaintiff parentsis both independentand derivative.

12 24. Defendants,and their agentemployees,andspecifically defendantPatterson,were

13 alsonegligentand/ornegligentper se in failure to comply with certainlaws and regulationsof the

14 Stateof Washington,including but not limited to, RCW 28A .58.255 now RCW 28A.230.080,

15 28A.04.132,28A.58.10l, 28A.58.1011, 28A.58.255,28A.230.080,28A.85.0l0,28A.640.010,

16 28A.640.020,26.44.0301ac, 26.44.040, as well as all rules and regulationspromulgated

17 pursuant to RCW 28A.41.170and 28A.150.290. This negligencewas a proximate cause of

18 damageto plaintiffs.

19 VIII.

20 FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
DESTRUCTION OF FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIP

21
25. Plaintiffs reallegeeachand every allegation set forth in paragraphs1 through24.

22

23

24 4As that term is used and/ordefinedin RCW 28A.58.1O11andRCW 28A.150.060.

25 5As that term is defmedby RCW 28A.15O.070.
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1 26. The parent/child relationship betweenplaintiffs - - and I and

2 is biological. The Washingtonstatelegislaturehas found and declared, "The bond

3 betweenchild and. . . herparentsis of paramountimportanceand any interventionin the life of

4 the child is -also interventioninto the life of the- parents" - -RCW 26.44.O10.--Priorto the

5 tortiousconductof thedefendants,theplaintiffs enjoyeda reasonablynormal familial relationship

6 which was securedby the First and FourteenthAmendmentsto the United StatesConstitutionand

7 remedial through 42 U.S.C. §1983, "Civil Action for Deprivation of Rights," §19853,

8 "Conspiracyto Interferewith Civil Rights--DeprivingPersonsofRightsor Privileges,"and§1986,

9 "Action for Neglect to Prevent." The homein which plaintiff - lived, prior to the

10 tortiousconductof thedefendant,was safeand free from physical,sexual, and emotionalabuse,

11 and suchsafety is securedby the FourteenthAmendmentto the United StatesConstitution and

12 remedialthrough42 U.S.C. §1983, §1985, and §1986. The malicious interferenceand sexual

13 exploitation6and abuse7by CharlesJungblom,and the allowing of that interferenceby defendants

14 damagedthe familial relationshipandotherprotectedrights of the plaintiffs. As a proximateresult

15 of the conductof defendants,the plaintiffs’ familial relationshipwas disrupted,and despitethe

16 discontinuanceof suchinterference,the damagecontinuesand canbe expectedto continuefor an

17 indeterminateperiodof time and to someextentwill be life-long.

18 IX.

19 CAUSATION AND DAMAGES

20 27. Plaintiffs reallegeeachand every allegationset forth in paragraphs1 through 26.

21

22

23

24 6As defined by RCW 26.44.02015.

25 7As defined by RCW 26.44.02012.
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1 28. Equitablerelief such as back pay or prospectiverelief are inappropriate,rather,

2 plaintiffs are entitled to the broadestof monetarydamageremedies.8

3 29. As a direct andproximatecauseof thedefendants’aforementionedtortiousconduct,

4 violation of protectedcivil rights..and violation of statutory and common law, each and every

5 plaintiff has suffered substantialspecial and generaldamagesof a type that would be normally

6 foreseeable.

7 30. As a direct and proximateresult of the above-describedacts of the defendants,

8 plaintiff - hassufferedseverephysicalandemotionaldistress,inconvenience,painand

9 suffering, humiliation, anxiety, loss of enjoymentof life, and other non-pecuniarylosses as

10 previouslyallegedhereinand will continueto so suffer in the future.

11 31. As a direct and proximateresult of the above-describedacts of the defendants,

12 plaintiff - hassuffereddamageto hereducationandeducationalpotential,9destruction

13 of her trust in her community and society in general, the destructionof plaintiff

14

15

16
8As enumeratedby the Civil Rights RemediesEqualizationAmendmentof 1986, 42 U.S.C. §2000d-7a2and

Franklinv. Gwjnnett County Public Schools, 112 S.Ct. 1028, 1032-381992.

18
9As definedby the "Basic EducationAct Goals" in RCW 28A.150.210, which statesin part:

The goal of the BasicEducationAct for the schoolsof the stateof washingtonsetforth
19 in this chaptershall be to provide studentswith the opportunity to becomeresponsible

citizens,to contributeto their own economicwell-being andto thatof their families and

20 communities,andto enjoy productiveandsatisfying lives. To theseends, thegoalsof
eachschooldistrict, with the involvementof parentsandcommunity members,shall be

21
to provideopportunitiesfor all studentsto developtheknowledgeandskills essentialto:

.communicateeffectively andresponsiblyin avariety of ways and
22 settings;.

23 Think analytically, logically, and creatively, and to integrate
experienceand knowledge to form reasonedjudgments and solve

24
problems;and

Understandtheimportanceof work andhow performance,effort, and
25 decisionsdirectly affect future careerandeducationalopportunities.
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1 faith in thevaluesand traits1° determinedimportantby the legislationof the stateof Washington,

2 as wefl aspastand future economicand/orearningcapacityloss.

3 32. As a direct and proximate result of the above-describedacts of the defendants,

4 - . plaintiff ‘ relationshipwith her parentaJsbeendamaged.

5 33. As a direct and proximate result of the above-describedacts of the defendants,

6 plaintiffs and - have suffered severe emotional distress and mental anguish,

7 inconvenience,the loss of love, services,societyandcompanionshipof theirdaughter,anddamage

8 to all facetsof the parent-childrelationship,past, presentand future.

9 X.

10 JURY DEMAND

11 34. A jury trial is requested.

12 XI. -

13 PRAYER

14 WHEREFORE,plaintiffs seeksthe following relief:

15 1. Compensationfor past,presentandfuturemedical andrelatedhealthcareexpenses;

16 2. Compensatorydamagesfor past, presentand future pain, suffering and other

17 generaland non-pecuniarydamagesashereinbeforealleged;

18 3. Compensatorydamagesfor past, presentand future loss of enjoymentof life;

19
10As definedby RCW 28A.150.211which statesin part:

The legislaturealso recognizesthatcertainbasicvaluesandcharactertraits areessential
to individual liberty, fulfillment, andhappiness.. . Thesevaluesandtraits [for students]

21 include the importanceof:

22 1. Honesty, integrity andtrust;
2. Respectfor self andothers;

23 3. Responsibilityfor personalactionsandcommitments;
4. Self-discipline andmoderation;

,, 4
5. Diligenceanda positive work ethic;

L’t 6. Respectfor law andauthority;
7. Healthy andpositive behavior;and

25 5. Family as the basis of society.
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4. Compensatorydamagesfor pecuniary lossesincluding lost earningcapacity, past

and future, and delayededucationalopportunity;

5. For prejudgmentintereston liquidated damages; -

6. Punitive damages,if allowableunderfederallaw, for violationof 20 U.S.C. §1681,

7. Reasonableattorneysfeesand costs of litigation, pursuantto 42 U.S.C. § 1988 or

other applicablelaw; and

8. For suchotherand further relief as the Court may deemjust and equitable.
/4’

DATED this / day of September,1995
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